
 

 

FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

February 15, 2018 | 7:00 p.m. 
300 West Briarcliff Road | Bolingbrook | Board Room (2nd Floor) 

 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call of Trustees 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Approval of Agenda 
4. Minutes for Approval 

a. Board Meeting – January 18, 2018 
5. Employee Recognition 

a. Rosemary Bauer – 10 years 
b. Anna Gillespie – 5 years 
c. Joseph Petrick – 5 years 

6. Comments from the Public 
7. Friends of the Library 
8. New Business – Action Items 

a. Approval of Dual Positions Section for the Employee Handbook 
b. Approval of Americans with Disabilities Act Policy Statement Section for the  

Employee Handbook 
c. Approval of Appointments for Board Liaison Positions 
d. Approval of Trustee Service for American Library Association Committees 

9. Library Projects 
10. Correspondence 
11. Treasurer’s Report 
12. Bills for Approval 

a. Bills Paid Report – February, 2018  
b. Bills Payable Report – February, 2018 

13. Director’s Report – January, 2018  
14. Unfinished Business 
15. Reports 

a. Building  
b. Finance  
c. Strategic  
d. Personnel  

16. Announcements 
17. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For further information regarding this meeting agenda, please contact: 
Paul Mills, Executive Director | Fountaindale Public Library District 

(630) 685-4157 | pmills@fountaindale.org 



 

 

February 2018 Agenda Background 
Paul Mills 

 
8. New Business – Action Items 
 

a. Approval of Dual Positions Section for the Employee Handbook 
 
This draft revision of this section has been modified to include a statement that 
an employee may only hold one position at a time at our library.   
 
The paragraph regarding election or appointment of an employee to the Board of 
Trustees has been modified to state that employment with the District would be 
terminated upon being sworn in as an elected official.  This change is upon the 
advice of our attorney. 
 
Suggested Motion:  Motion to repeal the existing Dual Positions section in the 
Employee Handbook and to approve the revised Dual Positions section for the 
Employee Handbook. 

 
b. Approval of Americans with Disabilities Act Policy Statement Section for the 

Employee Handbook 
 
This draft revision of this section has been modified to include the following 
components –  

 
1.  The procedure for requesting an accommodation will include an interactive 
discussion between the District and the employee making the request. 

 
2.  The District will maintain the confidentiality of employee health records; they 
may only be revealed in order to determine what reasonable 
accommodation can be given. 

 
3.  A prohibition on retaliation against an employee for requesting an 
accommodation in good faith. 
 
Our attorney has reviewed this draft as well. 
 
Suggested Motion:  Motion to repeal the existing Americans with Disabilities Act 
Policy Statement section in the Employee Handbook and to approve the revised 
Americans with Disabilities Act Policy Statement section for the Employee 
Handbook. 

 



 

 

c. Approval of Appointments for Board Liaison Positions 
 
President Danhof and Vice President Kalnicky reviewed the appointments for 
Board Liaison Positions, and recommend the following appointments – 
 
Building 
Robert Kalnicky 
Marcelo Valencia 
 
Finance 
Steven Prodehl 
Kathryn Spindel 
 
Strategic 
Robert Kalnicky 
Celeste Bermejo 
 
Personnel 
Margaret (Peggy) Danhof 
Ruth Newell 
 
Suggested Motion:  Approval of appointments for Board Liaison positions. 
 

d. Approval of Trustee Service for American Library Association Committees 
 
Treasurer Kathryn Spindel has been asked to serve and is seeking to serve on 
multiple ALA Committees.  The appropriate form has been included in the 
packet.   
 
Suggested Motion:  Motion to approve Trustee Service for American Library 
Association Committees per the form submitted. 
 

 
 
  
 



 

Board Meeting: January 18, 2018  1  

                                       MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
 THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
 THE FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
 WILL AND DUPAGE COUNTIES, ILLINOIS  
 HELD JANUARY 18, 2018 
 BOLINGBROOK, ILLINOIS 
 
 
A meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Fountaindale Public Library District, Will and DuPage 
Counties, Illinois was held at the Bolingbrook Library, 300 West Briarcliff Road, Bolingbrook, 
IL 60440, Thursday, January 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. by President Margaret (Peggy) Danhof. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The roll was called by recorder, Juanita Lennon, and a quorum was established.   
 
PRESENT 
 
Present at roll call were Steven Prodehl, Robert Kalnicky, Kathryn Spindel, Ruth Newell, 
Marcelo Valencia, Celeste Bermejo and Margaret (Peggy) Danhof. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None.  
 
FOUNTAINDALE STAFF PRESENT 
 
The following staff was present: Paul Mills, Juanita Lennon and Tasos Priovolos.  
 
PUBLIC PRESENT 
 
The following public was present: Jody Hargett. Meredith Walker and Aaliyah Walker entered at 
7:15 p.m.  
 
AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
Following the Pledge of Allegiance, Danhof asked for a motion to approve the agenda. A motion 
was made by Newell, seconded by Spindel. 
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 



 

Board Meeting: January 18, 2018  2  

MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING – December 21, 2017 
 
The minutes of the board meeting held December 21, 2017 were presented. A motion to approve 
the minutes was made by Spindel, seconded by Kalnicky. Minutes were approved as read.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
 
President Danhof recognized Tasos Priovolos for his five years of service and presented him 
with certificate and keychain.  
 
PEGGY J. DANHOF PROCLAMATION 
 
Vice President Robert Kalnicky presented Margaret J. (Peggy) Danhof with a proclamation for 
her recent naming as a 2018 Illinois Library Association Luminary.  
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
No comments were made. 
 
FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY 
 
Jody Hargett reported that sales are going well especially in the Friend’s Nook. Cookbooks, 
books on religion and DVDs seem to be the more popular items. The Friends are getting ready 
for the upcoming Spring Book Sale on April 7-8.  
 
DEMONSTRATION OF BOARD AUDIOVISUAL EQUIPMENT 
 
Building Operations Manager Tasos Priovolos demonstrated the new audiovisual equipment 
upgrades in the Board Room.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Approval of Request to Travel for Trustees to 2018 American Library Association Annual 
Conference in New Orleans, LA – June 21-26, 2018 
 
A motion to approve the requests to travel for trustees to the 2018 American Library Association 
Annual Conference in New Orleans, Louisiana on June 21-26, 2018 was made by Prodehl, 
seconded by Spindel.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
 



 

Board Meeting: January 18, 2018  3  

Approval of Request to Travel for Executive Director to 2018 American Library Association 
Annual Conference in New Orleans, LA – June 21-26, 2018 
 
A motion to approve the request to travel for the Executive Director to the 2018 American 
Library Association Annual Conference in New Orleans, Louisiana on June 21-26, 2018 was 
made by Newell, seconded by Kalnicky.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
Approval of Trustee Service for American Library Association Conference Committee 
 
A motion to approve trustee service for the American Library Association Conference 
Committee per the form submitted was made by Spindel, seconded by Newell.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
Approval of Closing the Library for a Half Day on August 3, 2018 and on February 8, 2019 
 
A motion to approve closing the library for a half day on August 3, 2018 and February 8, 2019 
was made by Spindel, seconded by Kalnicky.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
Approval to Seek Requests for Proposals for Computers for Public Use 
 
A motion to approve seeking requests for proposals for computers for public use was made by 
Kalnicky, seconded by Valencia.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
LIBRARY PROJECTS 
 
None.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

Board Meeting: January 18, 2018  4  

CORRESPONDENCE 
 
The Village of Bolingbrook sent the Board of Trustees a notice of Ordinance 17-068 
Terminating the Village of Bolingbrook Beaconridge TIF Redevelopment Project Area and 
Dissolving the Special Tax Allocation Fund and Declaration of Surplus Funds.  
 
TREASURER'S REPORT 
 
The Treasurer's Report for December, 2017 was presented by Treasurer Spindel and will be filed 
for audit. 
 
BILLS FOR APPROVAL   
 
Bills Paid Report – January, 2018 
 
Bills paid for the month of January in the amount of $69,777.39 was presented for approval. 
Motion to approve was made by Newell, seconded by Spindel. 

 
AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
 

Bills Payable Report – January, 2018 
 
Bills payable for the month of January in the amount of $2,224,160.67 was presented for 
approval.  Motion to approve was made by Kalnicky, seconded by Spindel. 
     

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
DIRECTOR'S REPORT – December, 2017 
 
Executive Director Mills and Finance Manager Jennie Nguyen had a conference call with 
Adrienne Booker from Ehlers, Inc. regarding the District’s building bonds.  Ehlers advised 
waiting until this Summer and examining the possibilities of doing a tax exempt refunding at that 
time.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Board Meeting: January 18, 2018  5  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Final Approval of Request to Travel for Trustees to 2018 American Library Association 
Midwinter Meeting in Denver, CO – February 9-13, 2018 
 
A motion for final approval of request to travel for trustees to 2018 American Library 
Association Midwinter Meeting in Denver, Colorado on February 9-13, 2018 was made by 
Kalnicky, seconded by Spindel.  
 

AYES:  Prodehl, Kalnicky, Spindel, Newell, Valencia, Bermejo, Danhof 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
REPORTS 
 
Building – None.  
 
Finance – None.  
 
Strategic Plan – Trustee Bermejo expressed an interest in serving as a Strategic Plan Liaison. 
 
Personnel – None. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Illinois Library Association Trustee Forum is on Saturday, February 17, 2018. 

The Valley View Educational Enrichment Foundation’s annual dinner auction is on Friday, 
March 2 at the Bolingbrook Golf Club. 

The Best of Bolingbrook Business Awards is on Thursday, March 8 at the Bolingbrook Golf 
Club.  

The 20th Annual Community Wide Black History Month Celebration is on Saturday, February 10 
at Bolingbrook High School.   

The Bolingbrook Rotary Club will be holding their annual Mac & Cheese event on Saturday, 
March 3 at New Life Lutheran Church from 12-2 p.m. Tickets are $10 each.  

Executive Director Mills presented the Board with a new flyer specifically designed for drive-
thru patrons. The flyer will highlight upcoming events and programs for the month.   

 
  



 

Board Meeting: January 18, 2018  6  

ADJOURNMENT 
 
A consensus was taken and the Board adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
 

Approved:                                                                
     Steven J. Prodehl, Secretary 

 
____________________________________ 
Margaret J. (Peggy) Danhof, President 
 
 
 



 

 

Dual Positions DRAFT 
 
 
An employee of the District cannot hold more than one position in the District 
simultaneously. 
 
An employee of the District cannot, while so employed, be a member of the Board of 
Trustees of the Fountaindale Public Library District.  An employee who wins election or 
is appointed to the Board of Trustees shall have employment with the District terminated 
as soon as an oath of office for the Board is taken. 
 
 



 

 

Americans with Disabilities Act Policy Statement 
  
The District is committed to complying with all applicable provisions of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act ("ADA").  It is the District's policy not to discriminate against any 
qualified employee or applicant with regard to any terms or conditions of employment 
because of such individual's disability, perceived disability or record of a disability so 
long as the employee can perform the essential functions of the job with or without a 
reasonable accommodation.  Consistent with this policy of nondiscrimination, the 
District will provide a reasonable accommodation to a qualified individual with a 
disability, as defined by the ADA, provided that such accommodation does not 
constitute an undue hardship on the District. 
  
Employees with disabilities who believe they need a reasonable accommodation to 
perform the essential functions of their job are encouraged to contact the Human 
Resources Manager.  Supervisors who receive a request for accommodation should 
report the request to the Human Resources Manager. 
  
Procedure for Requesting an Accommodation 
  
On receipt of an accommodation request, the Human Resources Manager and your 
supervisor will meet with you to begin the interactive process, which will include 
discussing your medical condition, work restrictions, and possible reasonable 
accommodations that may enable you to perform the essential functions of your 
position.  
 
Employee health records submitted to the District during the interactive process will be 
kept confidential and may only be revealed in order to determine what reasonable 
accommodation can be given to the employee.  
  
The Human Resources Manager will identify one or more reasonable accommodations, 
if available, that may be offered to the employee based on the totality of the 
circumstances. 
  
The Human Resources Manager will inform the employee of the decision on the 
accommodation request or on how to make the accommodation.  
  
The ADA does not require the District to make the best possible accommodation, to 
reallocate essential job functions, to provide personal use items (i.e., eyeglasses, 
hearing aids, wheelchairs etc.) or to provide the accommodation preferred by the 
employee.  



 

 

 
The District prohibits retaliation against any individual who requests an accommodation 
in good faith. 
  
An employee or job applicant who has questions regarding this policy or believes that 
he or she has been discriminated against based on a disability should notify the Human 
Resources Manager or the Executive Director.  All such inquiries or complaints will be 
treated as confidential to the extent permissible by law.  
  



 

 

Board Liaison Descriptions 

 

Building  

The Building Liaisons oversee significant building and grounds issues for the District. 

 

Finance  

The Finance Liaisons oversee the financial position of the District. 

 

Strategic  

The Strategic Plan Liaisons oversee the Strategic Plan for the District. 

 

Personnel 

The Personnel Liaisons oversee internal operations of the Board of Trustees.  



 

 

FOUNTAINDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
APPROVAL FORM  

FOR 
TRUSTEE SERVICE WITHIN STATE OR NATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS 

 
 

Date Submitted: 2/15/2018 
 
Trustee Name:  
 
Kathryn Spindel 
 
Name of Organization:  
 
ALA/United for Libraries 
 
Officer/Committee Assignment(s):  
 

1. Legislative, Advocacy and Intellectual Freedom Committee - member 
2. United’s Partnership Task Force - member 
3. United For Libraries Board –member  to serve as Trustee- At- Large 
4. PLA Conference Committee – member 
5. Leaders Orientation Committee - member 

Appointed By:  
 
Beth Nawalinski, Executive Director of United for Libraries, a division of American Library 
Association 

Term(s) of Service:  
 
All assignments will expire after ALA Annual conference this June, 2018.  The one exception is 
United for Libraries board member/Trustee-at-large. This term expires June 2020.  

I will be seeking to be re-appointed to Legislative, Advocacy and Intellectual Freedom 
Committee.  

Statement by Trustee: 
 
I am so very excited to continue to serve ALA/UFL. I am particularly excited to start my new 
assignment as a voting board member for United for Libraries.   I have already started United’s 
Partnership Task Force.  We are already brainstorming new partnership ideas for advocacy for 
UFL. 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Additional Notes:  
 
The committees meet at Midwinter and have programming at Annual.  The UFL board meets at 
Mid-Winter and Annual. 

Signature of Trustee: 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date of Board Approval: 2/15/2018 





























































 

 

February 2018 Monthly Board Report 
Paul Mills 
February 15, 2018 
 
Director 
 
LIRA Update 
 
The LIRA (Libraries of Illinois Risk Agency) Executive Committee met in January and I 
was elected to a second term as Chair of LIRA.  I am very happy and pleased to serve.  
LIRA has saved our District and the other 50 libraries significant sums of money while 
providing increased coverage and continuing education.  Our District is a founding 
member of LIRA and I have been on the Executive Committee since LIRA’s inception. 
 
Statements of Economic Interest 
 
This year Will County will be doing the Statement of Economic Interest process 
electronically.  Letters will be mailed at the end of February with instructions and login 
credentials for each trustee and each manager to complete their statements online.   
 
 
Deputy Director (Nancy Castellanos) 
 
In January the library had the opportunity to partner with the Bolingbrook Park District to host 
Winterfest at the Annerino Community Center.  The event was a great success, staff from our 
Outreach, Children’s, Teen and Studio departments worked hard to offer some great activities 
such as cookie decorating, story time and karaoke.  At the library’s information table, we saw 
over 1,000 people stop by to spin the prize wheel and learn about our services. This was a great 
opportunity to be out in the community and having them experience the great services the 
library has to offer.  Many people I spoke with were avid library users and were happy to see us 
at Winterfest.  

January also marked the start of our Summer Adventure planning! Staff from different 
departments has started to plan out this year’s program which will have a music theme and will 
called “Read to the Beat.”  We will be rolling out a new tracking software this year which we 
hope will be easier for patrons to use and provide them with a way to track points and get 
reading suggestions.   

Excerpted from Jenny Cuevas’ Report 

Circulation Services 

Hold Slips Update 
 
Jenny Cuevas (Circulation Services Manager) worked with Matt Hammermeister (ILS Manager) 
and the IT Department to implement the new hold slips. The format has changed for the slips, 
instead of the label printing the patron’s last name horizontally, the label will print the patron’s 
last name vertically going down, along with the first initial of the patron’s first name and a middle 
initial, if entered on their account. This format could only be done by using Leap, which is the 
web based version of our integrated library system, and used at staff computer stations. There 
are settings that are still being worked on to make this process complete. 



 

 

 
  
Drive-Thru Bookmarks 
 
Patrons are now receiving bookmarks with their holds being picked-up at the drive-thru window. 
The bookmarks contain information about upcoming events and services available at the library 
to keep patrons informed. This was made possible thanks to the Communications Department. 
The Circulation Department received 1,000 bookmarks as a test trial. 
 
Issuing Refunds 
 
Jenny Cuevas meet with Paul Mills (Executive Director), Nancy Castellanos (Deputy Director), 
and Jennie Nguyen (Finance Manager) to re-evaluate the process for issuing refunds to patrons 
for lost and paid items. Patrons will be issued a check by the library, and have the option to pick 
up the check in person (with proper identification) or sent by mail. 
 
Change of Book Drop Times 
 
Jenny Cuevas worked with Rachel Ford (Circulation Services Associate Manager) and Kate 
Thurston (Circulation Services Assistant Manager) to re-evaluate the number of times that staff 
retrieve the book drops. Staff will go out a total of six times versus ten times, which eliminated 
some intervals of thirty minutes. 
 
Staff Updates 

 On Tuesday, January 16th, Danny Bedoya (Circulation Services Lead Specialist) 
covered the Children’s Services desk for their monthly meeting. 
 

 On Saturday, January 27th, Jenny Cuevas assisted Nancy Castellanos at the Winterfest 
Event that was held at the Annerino Community Center.  
 



 

 

 On Monday, January 29th, Julie Walker started her first day as our new Circulation 
Services Aide. Julie will continue to train with Rachel Ford as she continues to learn the 
responsibilities of her position.  

 
 Jenny Cuevas met with the Circulation Services Aide staff individually to formally 

introduce herself, and know the job responsibilities of the staff within the department. 
 
Excerpted from Marianne Thompson’s report 
 

Outreach Services  
 
Highlights: 
 

 The Park District Preschool annual class visits to Fountaindale were held Jan 8-12, 
2018.  Laura, Melissa, & Annalyn helped to provide many fun stories, activities, and 
songs for the children & Park District staff to enjoy.  The theme was “soup”.  The classes 
had fun jumping in the sessions.  At one point, Laura said she would not have to 
exercise for a month!  A dance party was held to complete the story times, with fun 
music and of course the lovely color changing lights in the story time room!   

   
 Panera moved into their new store on the east side, by Ashley Furniture.  The first story 

time was a bit crazy, right after the opening.  The area for the story time is right inside 
the front door.  They no longer have the nice open space with the rug & fireplace, as the 
old store had.  39 attended the event, and they all enjoyed story time followed by Milk & 
Cookies! 
               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 Winterfest at the Annerino Center was very successful!  We had 215 visit the 

Bookmobile; 126 for Story Time; and 702 for cookie decorating!  This was Marleigha’s 
first big Outreach event, and she worked in the cookie decoration room.  Along with the 
other volunteers from Fountaindale, they prepared 100 plates with a cookie, frosting 
sprinkles, and a popsicle stick for decorating.  Everyone had a great time with the 
cookies!  We had a lot of children bringing their parents/grandparents on the Bookmobile 
and they gave them the tour!  Lots of great comments!  We still get people asking us if 
we are selling books!  Story time was successful and some favorite activities include 
skating on wax paper, the Freeze Dance, and the Snowball Fight!   

   
  

 
 
 The Bookmobile attended the Wal-
Mart Health Fair on Jan 20.  After 
settling on a place to park, the event 
was a bit slow to start, but by 11 am, 
people were coming on the 
Bookmobile.  One couple came on to 
settle an argument about how to 
pronounce “Bookmobile”.  The wife was 
correct! 
               
 

 
 
 

 On Jan 31 Melissa attended Head Start’s 
Literacy night.  The theme was “bedtime 
stories & pajamas.”  Melissa wore her 
pajamas, too!  She had 55 attend story time, 
and made 9 new library cards.  We also 
donated some left-over pictures books from 
last year’s Summer Adventure, and some 
activity books.  Each child went home with a 
book. 

  
 
 



 

 

Comments: 
 At the Levy Center, a presentation was 

taking place in the big dining room, 
where we normally setup.  Staff moved 
to the front lobby and setup their carts 
by the fireplace.  From the photo it 
seems quite nice, and maybe we might 
want to try this again!   

                                 
 
 

 Cindy provided a puppet show for January classes called “Little Red Shoes” - which was 
a hit with students and teachers.  

  
 

 This was Marleigha’s month to learn to drive the Bookmobile.  She has driven to all the 
stops and reports, “...it was not as hard as I expected!”  Great news!  Marleigha will 
hopefully be ready to take the road test in February. 

 After a discussion with Wendy & Joyce, and then with Nancy & Melissa Bradley, the 
Outreach Book Talkers (Cindy, Kathy, Annalyn) are receiving copies of the CSD flyers to 
take with them to promote more of the library programs to students & teachers.  It is 
working VERY WELL!  According to Kathy, students are more engaged about the 
announcements when they can see the flyer.  Many times the students actually write 
down the date & time of the programs.  We also post copies of the flyers on the 
Bookmobile bulletin board, and students are asking many more questions about the 
programs. Annalyn reports that taking the flyers to St, Dominic’s classrooms has made a 
world of difference, with students asking a lot of questions about the 
programs.  Teachers made copies of the flyers to post in their rooms.   

 Kathy received an email from a teacher requesting biographies to be pulled for her 
class.  The students were doing a research project. Each student selected a person and 
several of the students picked “YouTubers” for which there are no books for 
them.  Kathy printed articles from our databases. The teacher knew there would not be 
any books but was trying to teach the students how to pick an appropriate person to 
research. She came back with a second list for the students who needed better subjects 
and included the comment, “I have not used the library for mass checkouts before, this is 
AMAZING! You all have been so helpful! The kids are loving this research project!”  The 
books were delivered to the school. 

 Melissa attended the quarterly meeting of Serving Patrons with Dementia at the St. 
Charles Public Library.  Melissa shared some of the books & crafts she has used at 
Autumn Leaves.  Melissa also shared that she provides a puppet show.  Melissa came 
back with a list of new ideas she would like to try in the coming months!.   



 

 

Repairs & Maintenance of Outreach Vehicles: 
 1/2/18: Bookmobile engine would not continue to run and generator would not 

start.  After contacting Joe at Diesel Service Center, he said it was due to the extreme 
cold causing the fuel to gel. Both Van and Bookmobile were out of service due to cold 
temperatures and sub-zero wind chills. 

 1/3/18: Bookmobile engine started and continued to run but the generator would not 
start. Bookmobile was taken to Diesel Service Center for routine oil change and 
preventative maintenance, to check an intermittent warning code, and check to see if 
generator battery needed only a jumpstart. 

 1/4/18: Bookmobile picked up from Diesel Service Center; the generator was still not 
starting and Joe from DSC indicated that there was no power to/from the generator. We 
took Bookmobile to KD Repair to check the generator and have the necessary repairs 
made so it works. The generator did not start due to a fuse switch not working properly. 
An oil change was done as well as the recommended 200-250 preventative 
maintenance.  

 1/6/18: Bookmobile was out of service due to generator not operating. 
 1/9/18: The front (dashboard heaters) turned off while Sarah and Marleigha were on the 

Bookmobile, but in the evening the heaters seems to be working. The dashboard 
heaters only work on low speed; they cut off on high speed.  This has been an ongoing 
problem that was reviewed in 2016. At that time it was determined a repair would require 
replacement of the entire cab area heating system. 

 1/12/18: Bookmobile was taken to Accurate Truck & Bus repair to replace the seals on 
the exterior doors and shave down the interior wheelchair lift door. Due to needing the 
Bookmobile back for driver training, Travis at Accurate was only able to seal the exterior 
doors but said we should bring it back to have the door frame built up because the air 
leakage is due to the fact the exterior doors were manufactured 4 inches too small for 
the opening. Upon return, staff determined the repairs worked great, the vehicle was 
overall much warmer. 

 1/22/18: The generator again was not working and the Bookmobile was taken back to 
KD Repair. It was found that the motherboard for the generator had been fried as well as 
one of the five interior connectors.  

 1/19/18: The coolant warning light came on in the Van again.. The coolant level was 
below the max but at a level that it could still be driven. There appears to be a slow leak 
or an issue with the coolant system because the level keeps dropping. Staff were able to 
drive the vehicle and monitor the level while Marianne waited for Farber to approve 
taking it to another vendor for a second opinion. 

 1/24/18: The Van unexpectedly locked by itself when the driver door was shut and keys 
were in the ignition. Mercedes Roadside Assistance came out and opened the door for 
the vehicle. It was discovered that the manual lock on the driver side does not work with 
the key.  The Van is scheduled to go to Mercedes in Westmont to repair that lock in early 
February. 

 1/31/18: The Van was taken to Diesel Service Center to have the coolant system 
checked out in the “non-Mercedes warranty area” and determine where the leaking is 
coming from to repair it. 

  
Upcoming Events/Plans: 
Feb 15 - Science Fair Resources Night - McGee Elementary 
Feb 19 - Senator Jennifer Bertino-Tarrant Kids Fair - Troy Middle School, Plainfield, IL 
Feb 24 - Preschool Roundup - Fountaindale 
 
 
 



 

 

Excerpted from Jeffrey Fisher’s Report 
 

Studio 300 
 
The first month of the new year yielded the following Studio 300 stats: 

 975 patrons actively used our space. 
 3381 items were checked out. 

o 101 of that total circulated out of the lab. 
 31 patrons attended our 12 Orientations. 
 114 patrons came to our 21 other Adult/T(w)een programs. 
 13 Non-FPLD people used Studio 300. 
 We made 46 3-D prints 
 And there were about 1755 blog page views. 

 
Jeremy L. led a Mobile Media Lab and launched the inaugural meeting of our new Indie 
Filmmaking Club to great success. Joe P. taught robotics to the Homeschoolers. Justin C. 
debuted two classes featuring new music production resources. Joe P. taught two completely 
opposite maker classes: Building a 3D Printer and Take IT Apart. The results of the former 
means a second, new 3D printer for our patrons to use. 
 
Jeffrey assisted ATSD with video production for their Retro Game Night. Steven B. contributed 
a stunning 3D animation and virtual set for the video. Anna G., Adriana A., and Joe P. assisted 
with the graphics side of the program, too. 
 
One again, Joe P. and Jeffrey lead the Karaoke program during the Park District's WinterFest. 
About 118 people visited resulting in 43 songs/videos soon to be posted to YouTube. 
 
Anna G. moved to full-time status the first week of January. Adriana A. took a group photo of 
our Board and is working on pulling all the photographic material together for the designer. 
Adriana A., Steven B., and Jeremy L. trained for an entire day with After Effects guru Tony 
Venezia and all three are excited to share what they discovered with our interested patrons. 
 
Jeffrey attended a Manager's meeting, Programming, Summer Adventure committee, 
Beanstack basic training, and served his regular PIC shift duties. He met with Paul M., Nancy 
C., and Melissa B. regarding using forms on the new website for Orientation, Parental Waivers, 
and 3D print orders. He met an additional time with Melissa B. for a Studio 300 Fifth Anniversary 
and promo material discussion. He worked with Christina T. (and Anna G.) on STEAMbox future 
development. Jeffrey joined the GT-5 subset to discuss training options using Niche Academy. 
He held meetings with BiblioLabs including a demo webinar also attended by Nancy C. and 
Christina T. Finally, he led the Tinker Technology Troupe as they planned final details for the 
upcoming Maker Faire in March. 
 
Excerpted from Debra Dudek’s report 
 

Adult and Teen Services  
 
General Comments on the Month 
January marked the debut of our new board game project Dyrkoth’s Tower, which was our first 
big program for the 20s and 30s patrons during this calendar year.  This has been a six month 
project, with all the designs, script, video shoots, and other design elements being produced in 
house.  We shot the footage we needed in less than an hour, and with Dan in front of the 



 

 

camera, I had the opportunity to operate the 
teleprompter and direct the acting and dialogue 
for the video.  Our board game development staff 
consisted of Jason Peters, Agnes Babinski, 
myself, and some of the folks at Studio 
300.  Together, I think we put together a really 
solid and enjoyable game concept which has 
great potential to grow and be used in house, at 
surrounding businesses, and as programming 
opportunity at our Pinnacle Library Cooperative. 
We beta tested the game during a meeting of 
Young and Geeky on Monday, January 15, and 
our six players did a great job running through the 
game.   
 
After making our test run, we looked at some 
outside printing options to provide some longevity 
to our game’s playing cards.  We contacted 
Bolingbrook Signs, and within a week, Leslie and 
Kevin had our game cards printed, cut, coated, 
and ready to be played.  Our cards looked 
outstanding!   
 
After making a few adjustments, we made a 
public debut of the game on Wednesday, January 
24 at Skeleton Key Brewery in neighboring 
Woodridge.  Using a combination of in house, on 

site, and meetup advertising, we garnered 35 players for the night, with another group of five 
onlookers who were content to watch the game progress and support their friends.   
   
 It was a great program, and our feedback has been 
very positive.  The owners of Skeleton Key Brewery 
were very pleased with the event, and cannot wait to 
have us back for another game program.  We have a 
list of places to distribute and share our game on a 
monthly basis, and we’re hoping to garner a strong 
following for this type of 20s and 30s something 
program schedule.  
 
 
Due to the WWI and America programming grant 
and the state bicentennial, we’ve lined up three 
additional genealogy and history programs for the 
year.  Our club normally does not meet during July, 
August, and December, but due to grant funding, I 
have scheduled two back-to-back programs for the 
summer months.  Andrew Bullen is lined up to 
present a fantastic program entitled ‘Music of World 
War I’ in July, and the amazing Jay Warren will be 
bringing his portable organ setup to present a live 
music accompaniment to the silent movie classic 
‘Wings’ as the last slated program in the WWI and 



 

 

America lineup.  William Pack is scheduled to present ‘Illinois at 200’ in December to celebrate 
our state’s 200th birthday.   
 
Our department welcomed a new practicum student this month.  Juliet Wile is completing 120 
hours of study toward her degree at Dominican University.  She would like to specialize in youth 
and teen services, and so far she has been trained in adult and teen services in the Vortex, 2nd 
Floor Media Desk, and 3rd Floor Reference Desk.  Juliet will complete her practicum by the first 
week of April 2018.   
 
During the month of January, our department bid farewell to Ilya Kabirov, who accepted a full 
time librarian position in Naperville.  As we have lost two specialists in quick succession, 
Christopher and I conducted interviews for multiple staff positions in our department, and 
several of our employees have been absent due to illnesses.  We are working toward filling the 
positions we have available to better serve our patrons and keep up with our ever growing day-
to-day services. 
 
Randi’s Observations: We held our first Summer Adventure meeting of the year. Our theme is 
music, the tagline is Summer Adventure 2018: Read to the Beat. My team and I are already 
planning programs for the June-August programming cycle, paying particular attention to music 
programs. We are also excited that we will be able to show Coco after the Ice Cream Social on 
July 31. I attended a Beanstack Kick-off meeting on January 16. It is very early stages for this 
product. Our first program will be the Summer Adventure. Steven and I plan on getting together 
to build the shell of the program in February. 
 
Teen Programming 
 

 Teen Makers DIY was a lot of fun this month. We made infinity mirrors. Anna designed a 
simplified version of the project that involved a box, reflective materials, LEDs and a 
power source. The results were great! 

 
 

 Christine Thornton returned to the library in January to present another art program. 
Tara writes, “I was very excited to see that we had more than ten teens registered for 
this class.  Sadly, not all of them showed up.  However, the four teens that were here 
made some really cool nebula art within the outline of a human silhouette.  They used 
watercolor pencils and water to make the colorful, swirly background and small drops of 
white acrylic paint for the stars. I think they turned out phenomenally!” 
 

 None of the registered artists came in for this program, but Tara was able to wrangle 
eight nearby teens into dropping in.  And we are super glad she did!  They were all 
amazingly creative with the gloves, felt, feathers, stuffing, and other materials that Cathy 
Stanek-Whisler had provided. One teen had to leave early and has asked me several 
times when we’ll be doing the program again! 



 

 

 
 Tara and Ashe took the lead on our Vortex Vacay! Here are their observations. From 

Tara: What started off as a reason to get rid of extra leis left over from last year’s Ice 
Cream Social turned into a tropical luau with games, crafts, snacks and a movie!  We 
watched Lilo and Stitch, made perler bead magnets using kits that Ashe and volunteers 
had assembled, colored some underwater and beachy scenes, played a beach bingo 
game that I had created on Publisher, ate chips and tropical fruit kebabs and won 
fabulous prizes like flower leis and plastic kazoos!  Aloha! From Ashe: Tara and I worked 
in tandem to get things ready for Vortex Vacay! She took care of the bingo and coloring 
sheets while I got a bunch of perler bead patterns together for the kids to create. We had 
6 patterns they could choose from with kits of all the beads they needed! The favorite by 
far was Stitch! We also had Lilo and Stitch for the kids to watch while they colored, did 
bingo, made perler creations and some fruit and chips to eat! Nom! It was really pleasant 
and we had about 15 kids join us for the event.  

 
Computer Classes:  
The department staff hosted seven classes for 29 people. 
 
Career Online High School: 
Currently Enrolled: 11 
Currently Enrolled 30 Day Probation: 2 
Currently Enrolled Completed 30 Day Probation:1 
Students 75% Through Program: 3 
Graduate: 13 
 
Maureen’s Observations:  Welcome 2018!  We have some new programs we are offering this 
year to start the new year right!  Traffic has picked up at each of the service desks and study 
rooms have been very busy.  Programs have also been well attended. 
 
We had a few setbacks with Cozy Comfort Foods with Chef Susan Maddox involving the health 
department.  Cristina wrote about it in her report (excerpted below) but it was a learning 
experience and we now know what we need for next month’s cooking program. 
 
Conquer your Core class has held some pretty good number since it’s being taught by a new 
instructor, Stephan Kelly from the Bolingbrook Park District.  He’s been talking it up at his other 



 

 

classes so we’re seeing 10-15 attendees which is definitely bigger than the 5-10 we got with the 
previous instructor. 
 
Artist Series - 1/4/18 and 1/21/18 -Cheers to Love 
Since we are now scheduling the same themed painting during four separate sessions, I have 
seen a reduced wait list for each class and new people on the registration.  This is 
exciting.  However the drawback is the class isn’t filling up like it used to but I’ve heard less 
complaints from patrons who have struggled to get a spot in the class. 
 
1/11/18 - Our Climate Crisis 
Every year I work with the Bolingbrook Garden club to host their program at the library.  They 
usually hire a speaker and have him/her present at the library.  The program is always open to 
the public.  This year, Kent Taylor presented a climate change program.  There were 24 in 
attendance 
 
From Jessica Granados’ Report:  
 
Bolígrafo de la Buena Suerte (Good Luck Pen) Spanish program 
Tuesday, January 9, 2018, 7 p.m. 
These pens ended up looking really adorable and beautiful. Each had their own clay pot stand 
and made them look like flowers in bloom. Our patrons were able to do this with just regular 
pens, pipe cleaners and glue. The instructor Antonieta Diaz was able to show our patrons how 
easy they are to make. We had a total of ten patrons that attended.  

  
  
 DIY Home Improvement- With The Home Depot  
Tuesday, January 23, 2018, 6:00 pm 
 

My coworker Cristina Palomo invited 
our local Home Depot store to make a 
presentation on home improvement. 
They were kind enough to come and 
share tips and ideas on tile 
installation. This was the first time I 
saw a program like this being offered 
at our library. I was able to assist 
Cristina by welcoming Rich and D 
from the Home Depot on January 23 
and present them to our patrons. As a 



 

 

first time experience, I did not know how their presentation was. They set up their own 
workstation and supplies and Rich was very nice and friendly. He asked our patrons to come 
and look closer as he demonstrated tile installation. All of our patrons stood up and surrounded 
his table to see. We did have to move the table from the stage as it was hard for our patrons to 
get a closer view.  He also made some of our patrons participate and install some examples. All 
in all, I could tell our patrons were enjoying it and also learning a lot. They were really eager to 
ask multiple questions and Rich always had an answer for them. We had a total of twenty one 
patrons.   
  
Almohadón Decorativo (Decorative Pillow Spanish Program) 
Tuesday, January 30, 2018, 7:00pm - 8:30pm 
I was able to conduct this program and it was so much fun and gratifying at the same time. I 
was able to show patrons how to make felt roses and we used them to decorate pillows. I 
picked a Valentine’s Day theme as we are approaching February. Each patron was very 
creative and even though the idea was the same they all walked away with different looking 
pillows. It was really nice to see them leave with a big smile on their face. I also love the fact 
that this program is promoted in Spanish, patrons that do not speak Spanish love to attend it. I 
love to see how our Spanish speaking patrons are able to practice their English by helping each 
other and our English speaking patrons are learning Spanish from them. We had a full class of 
fifteen patrons. 
 
From Cristina Palomo’s Report 
 
Cooking Demo- Cozy Comfort Foods 1/30 
For the first time, we had a health inspector come to in to obtain a permit for the program. Chief 
Maddox, Nancy Castellanos, and Dan Mekeel had everything set up and ready for the health 
inspector as well as a sanitizing station. Everything passed the inspection, however we did not 
know that Chief Maddox has to bring in a copy of the permit where she prepped some of the 
food. Because we did not have a copy and were unable to get a hold of the owner where she 
prepped, the health inspector did not allow us to serve any food samples. We were still able to 
do the demonstration and the program went on. Prior to the start of the program, Nancy 
informed everyone that was outside waiting to come in of the situation. The majority of the 
patrons were understanding of the situation and stayed for the program anyways. Nancy stayed 
with me throughout the duration of the program in the event patrons wanted to fill out a 
comment card or wanted to talk to someone in charge in regards to what happened. No 
comment cards were filled and those in attendance left content. I informed everyone that we will 
have everything sorted out for next month’s demo and that food samples will be served. Both 
Nancy and Chief Maddox have the health inspector’s business card to ensure that all the proper 
documentation is present for next month and that we meet all of the expectations. 
 
Computer Services & Equipment Usage Report 

 Guest Passes Issued at the 2nd Floor Computer Lab: 802 
 Computer Commons Assistance Requests: 212 
 Fax/Copy Assistance Requests: 299 
 Printing/Scanning Assistance Requests: 174 
 DVD/Video Game Checkouts: 1,564 
 Other Materials Checkouts: 186 
 3rd Floor Chromebook Checkouts: 38 
 Vortex Chromebook Checkouts: 6 

 
 
 



 

 

From the Reference Desk of Tom Degutis 
     ---“You have no idea how much your help today means to me.” 
 
           --- SOURCE: Comment from a customer who came to the library looking for books 
and other materials to help her care for her elderly parent. The customer had very little 
time to spend in the library because she had to get back home to relieve the caretaker who 
was with her parent.  
 
Customer Service in the Computer Commons  
From Angela Vasser’s report: January was a busy month. I was able to help someone 
translate a document after a failed attempt using the translation option on our simple scanner. I 
was able to upload it to MS word and working with the patron, we were able to translate a user 
manual from English to Spanish.   
 
 
Excerpted from Wendy Birkemeier’s report 
 

Children’s Services 
 

Monthly Overview of Children’s Services:  What 
a lot happened in our department during the first 
month of 2018! Children enjoyed a second week of 
Winter Break Fun before returning to school. 
Storytime resumed the week after the Bolingbrook 
Park District Preschool classes came for storytimes 
with Miss Laura.  
     A full calendar of programs kept everyone 
engaged. Winterfest at the Annerino Center was a 
highlight of the month. Behind the scenes we 
continued to plan for spring and summer. 
      
Programming 

 

 Winter Break Fun (11 active and passive 
programs, 352 attendance) A second week 
devoted to colors: Orange, Pink, Red, White and 
Rainbow. The whole program, The Many- Colored 
Library Adventure was very fun. At the very 
beginning of the first week not many children 
participated in the different color activities that were 
provided. But as the week went on more and more 
children would make crafts and go on the 
scavenger hunt to find the missing object. Marta M.  
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

Stuffed Animal Sleepover Rosemary and I hosted the Stuffed 
Animal Sleepover and Snack Time on Jan. 2-3. Only 8 children 
and 4 adults attended. Someone signed up for every available 
opening and we had a sizable waiting list, but the weather was 
unpleasant the day of the program. … Rosemary had lots of 
good ideas for new places to pose the animals. She also took 
care of turning all the photos on the iPad into a video using the 
app. The children enjoyed watching the results (plus cookies and 
dancing). Sarah D.  
       
I always enjoy the Stuffed Animal Sleepover...The weather was 

very cold outside but with all 
the activity the stuffed 
animals had it was toasty 
warm on the inside. Sarah 
and I each read some stories, 
we played some music and paper bag animals for a 
craft….On Wednesday the children came to pick up the 
stuffed animals, and we had snacks and watched a movie 
that showed what the stuffed animals did in the library all 
night. Rosemary B. 

 
 Cardinal in the Snow: A Family Painting 
Workshop (30) This popular program filled in very 
quickly. We had 30 people signed up and 16 on the 
waiting list. I allowed exactly 30 people to come in after 
what I closed the door… One thing I liked in particular 
was that she [Christine Thornton] insisted that kids 
should do their projects without help. In her words: “a 5-
year-old project should look like a project made by a 5-
year-old not by her parent. At the end of the program 
she reiterated the importance of independent work. 
Andreea D. 
 
 

 
 Arts & Fables (2 programs, 49) School had 

not yet returned so Arts & Fables had as many 
big kids as little kids. Snowmen were our 
theme and we had lots of fun decorating 
circles and stringing them together to build our 
own special friend. Kathy B.  
 
 

 
 
 Family Movie: The Wizard of Oz (30): We had 
gingham napkins to wave when Dorothy was 
mentioned, paper apples to throw, Bluebirds when 
singing Over the Rainbow, Bubbles to blow for 
Glinda, a heart, medal and diploma for the Tin Man, 
Lion and Scarecrow. Rosemary B. 



 

 

Saturday Specials (4 programs, 157 attendance)  
 Sensory Storytime (25) Our theme was Polar 
Animals…One of the books that I read was called 
Guess Who’s in the Snow?…The children really got 
into the book … they would listen to the descriptions 
very intently and then shout out the names of the 
animals.… 
      As part of the sensory experience the children 
made penguins out of construction paper. They also 
got to play with polar animals in fake snow. The 
children described the snow as cold and wet. The 
fake snow also attracted the attention of many 

parents, they said that the snow looked and felt like real snow. They were even asking me to 
show them the actual container of the snow powder because they wanted to buy it for their kids 
to play with it at home. I also found a puppet owl, penguin and caribou that I had out for the 
children to touch and explore...There was one special needs child that attended the program 
with his mom and therapist; he was also very interested in the puppets and their softness. He 
liked to cuddle with the puppets and pretend that he was taking a nap. He was also trying very 
hard to repeat the animal sounds that his mom was making. Marta M. 
 

 STEAM Family Workshop (45) We had another great turnout for 
the program. I had a stencil art station, the fusion paper 
snowflakes. They could write their name in binary code using 
Legos. I had the construction blocks. We explored two Apps on 
the iPads, one on the water cycle and one on connectivity. The 
stations were geared toward kids in the specified age group of 
the program so when some families came with little ones it was 
difficult….We could explore the option for a preschool STEAM 
program. The coming events bulletin board was a topic of 
conversation. It served as a great opportunity to talk about the 
programs coming up with the parents. Many took pictures of the 
calendar and the program flyers for reminders. Debbie S. 

  
Storytime 

 Everyone was happy when Storytime resumed on January 15. Snow and cold kept our 
numbers down on a few occasions but 689 people attended 34 programs. Marta M. and 
Andreea D. adapted their special Storytimes to become bilingual. Starting in March the 
Polish program will move to Saturdays and Romanian to Sundays because of audience 
requests. 

 This month Polish Storytime had a little bit of a better turn out 
than last month (5 people total … 3 kids and 2 adults). I did the 
same stories and songs that I had planned for last month, 
because I never really had a chance to do them. The two 
families that came I know them personally … one family both 
parents are Polish and the other mom is Polish and dad is not, 
so mom is working very hard to expose her son to the Polish 
language and culture. I read 5 books... 2 of them I illustrated on 
the felt board (The Turnip and Dear Zoo) and the other 3 books 
were traditional Polish stories that the children were already 
familiar with. We did many interactive songs … “We ended the 
programs with bubbles and glow lights, which the children 
absolutely loved.  



 

 

       I went out into the community and advertised my program … I posted the library flyer in 
three Polish Mommy Facebook groups that I am a part of. I also did a little survey and asked 
parents which day of the week they preferred for the storytime and most of them said that 
Saturday was definitely much better than Sunday. I also passed out flyers on Friday at Polish 
School and had the director post a flyer on the school website…Even though turnout wasn’t as 
high as I would like it to be, I feel like the word is being put out there and people will start 
coming. Marta M. 
 

 Romanian Storytime (22) Before the program some non-
Romanian speaking patrons asked me if they can attend. In 
order to accommodate them I presented the whole program 
bilingual. Most of the kids that came this time were toddler 
age. In the days before the program I asked some moms to 
give me the songs their kids like the most. They made a nice 
list of suggestions. Starting from their suggestions I made a 
playlist for the program and added 2 CDs I have from 
personal collection. I also purchased some titles from iTunes. 
The format of the program was 4 traditional songs I animated 
with puppets and two stories: Puss in Boots and the fable Lion 

and the Mouse. We closed with two songs and bubbles. Everyone had some time to 
read and play after the program and I was asked to play again a song that everyone 
enjoyed to dance. Andreea D. 

 
Public Service 

 Winterfest: Joyce A. and Rosemary B. represented CSD at this event. 701 people (411 
kids, 290 adults) came into the cookie decorating room where they gave out 520 cookies 
to decorate with frosting and sprinkles. There were plenty of cookies left over as most of 
the adults did not participate.  

 Puzzles & Puppets: Susan F. continues to maintain these collections. She will be 
purchasing puzzles to replace some that are missing. CMTSD will be updating the 
catalog. Susan F. and Marta M. will be washing and inventorying the puppets in 
February. 

 1000 Books Before Kindergarten: Another reader completed the program! 9 more 
children registered for a total of 188. 

 One on One Sessions: A bilingual teacher came earlier Monday afternoon to ask me if 
she could observe my storytime because she felt her classroom is not very interested in 
listening to stories. She came that day for Diez Deditos. After the program she shared 
with me her observations: She said that she noticed how I change my voice when I am 
reading various characters and she liked how I integrate all sensories in the program. 
She also liked that some kids seem to have little jobs to do during the program: One girl 
manages the lights, another boy collects the musical instruments, and they all know to 
line up at the end of the program to receive their stickers. During the program we played 
the flannel board color game and one toddler boy who had a red car in his hand did not 
want to come at the board to place it because he was shy. At the end of the program 
when everyone was leaving the boy came back to me and said: Mrs. Andreea look, I do 
have a red car on my shirt. The teacher was impressed with his reaction because he 
extrapolated the concept to a different situation and tried to compensate for the 
opportunity he has missed. Talking to the teacher was a useful experience. I asked the 
teacher how she is using Chromebooks with her students and I got many interesting 
ideas from her. These information was useful especially because I have a program 
coming up “Fun with Chromebooks”. Then at the desk Wendy and I showed her various 



 

 

online resources like Tumblebooks, FreedomFlix, ScienceFlix, Scholastic GO, 
Encyclopedia Hallazagos and more. Andreea D. 

 Stories of the Month: I had a special interaction with one of our younger patrons, a boy 
of about 9/10 years old. He came in asking for the book Crenshaw [a Bluestem 
nominee]. In the system, it showed that there was one copy of it on the shelf, but when I 
checked the shelf the book was not there…I said to the boy that unfortunately, all of our 
copies are checked out and we only have a Spanish copy of the book and asked him if 
he wanted me to put it on hold for him. He told me that he would just take the Spanish 
copy because he knew how to read in Spanish. We walked together to the World 
Languages section and I showed him where the book was. I also praised him and told 
him that it was so wonderful that he knew a second language, because in this situation it 
came in handy. He did not have to wait for the English copy of the book to be available, 
he could just read the Spanish one. I also shared with him that I spoke Polish and how 
rewarding it was to know a second language and how beneficial it would be to him in the 
future. Marta M. 

 
 
Building Operations (Tasos Priovolos) 
 
Rahul Koshy has accepted another job tutoring students preparing for their SAT/ACT 
tests.  We all wish Rahul all the best with his endeavors. 
 
Andre Burton has accepted the Adult and Teen Services Specialist position.  Andre will 
be moving to ATSD in a few weeks.  We all wish Andre all the best with his endeavors. 
 
Worked with Pace to discuss the possibility of upgrading the Vortex audio/visual 
system.  Discussed the additional trades required during this project. 
 
Our RPZ/backflow valves were recently inspected and certified.  This annual inspection 
is required by Illinois American Water to assure buildings do not contaminate their water 
system during plumbing failures. 
 
Met with other staff to discuss the current usage of the 2nd Floor Computer Lab and 
review the options to better utilize this space.  
 
The Liebert air-conditioning unit for the Server Room required repairs due to a leak.  
Since this unit has redundancy built in, cooling to this room was not interrupted. 
 
Met with Security vendors to discuss the possibility of providing temporary staffing to the 
Security department due to the recent resignations. 
 
Tasos met with our Practicum Students, Juliet and Erienne, to tour the building and 
emergency exits.  Juliet shadowed Security during the VVSD early-release.  This was a 
great opportunity to see how Security handles the influx of students visiting our building. 
 
Tasos met with the Strategic Plan goal owners to discuss the goals defined for 2018.   
 
In January, 43 new maintenance tickets were created, and 45 new or existing tickets 
were completed. 



 

 

Fountaindale Public Library was 
awarded the Facility of the Year from 
the Northern Illinois Facility 
Management Association (IFMA).  
Annually, members vote on the best 
facility toured during the monthly 
meetings.  We competed against 
some larger facilities such as 
Discover Financial Services and 
Elmhurst College. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Collection Management & Technical Services (Christina Theobald) 
 
Highlights 
 

 Christina Theobald attended a Pinnacle Chairs meeting at the White Oak Public Library - Crest 
Hill Branch.  The Chairs discussed how to have better communication between the committees 
and then provided committee updates. 

 
 Christina Theobald hosted a PinTech meeting here at Fountaindale this month.  Dawne Tuitman, 

Penny Sauskojus and Danette Gatz were also in attendance.  The group discussed the way item 
record public notes are displayed in the catalog, RDA cataloging rules for music CDs, various 
database cleanup projects, and made progress on T.S. Policy revisions. 
 

 Penny Sauskojus participated Goal Team 5 workshop sessions, assisting Lea Pottle and Noey 
Frias in answering staff questions regarding the new Performance Evaluation Forms. 
 

 Christina Theobald worked with Randy Hildebrandt (IT) and Matt Hammermeister (ILS 
Manager) to troubleshoot some of the label printing issues.  Randy and Matt installed a new 
version of Screwdrivers on affected workstations, which solved the issues on all but Christina’s 
machine. 

 
 Lynnette Hopwood and Christina Theobald had a conference call with Collection HQ 

representative Donna Boecker, whom provided an overview of CHQ features and discussed our 
collection progress.  Our library has been doing exceedingly well in deselection and weeding, as 
Donna noted there is a direct correlation between weeding a collection and increase in circulation. 
Christina has started to review Fountaindale’s standing data sheet and the targets/metrics that 
have been inputted in the software.  Collection HQ is up for renewal in April. 

 
 Christina Theobald met with Library Ideas vendor representative Kyle Wiseman and observed a 

demo of new products, including the GoChip Beam and VOX Books.  Christina is considering 
adding both products to the collection. 



 

 

 
 Christina Theobald had a conference call with Hoopla representatives.  We deliberated on 

strategy to increase circulation and better market the library’s Hoopla offerings.  The reps also 
provided a tour of the Hoopla Admin site and how to change advanced settings. 

 
 Lynnette Hopwood met with the Summer Adventure Committee and was informed on the 

summer reading theme.  She received a better understanding of the direction they are taking and 
will produce coordinating material displays. 
 

 Christina Theobald, Lynnette Hopwood and Jake Luce met with Communications, IT, and CSD 
staff to discuss book and movie carousels on our newly designed website.  The objective is to 
streamline the process of adding content and have a consistent look with all carousels on the new 
site. 

 
 Christina Theobald met with Paul Mills, Nancy Castellanos, John Matysek, Debra Dudek and 

Jenny Cuevas to talk about the circulation and cataloging of Hot Spots.  Nancy has taken the lead 
on drafting a policy and Christina will be working to create catalog records and labels. 
 

 Christina Theobald had a conference call with Nancy Castellanos, Jeffrey Fisher and a 
representative from Bibliolabs to go over the annual renewal.  After reviewing circulation 
statistics, we decided to renew the primary Biblioboards platform but dropped some of the 
additional content that was not being used. 
 

 Christina and Tasos met to discuss possible changes to the workstations in the CMTSD 
workroom. 
 

 Lynnette Hopwood and Christina Theobald have begun the process to fill the open Collection 
Development Aide position.  The job description was updated and the position is currently 
posted.  Sue Jagiel has volunteered and was approved to work up to 4 additional hours per week 
to help fill in.  Jake Luce and Christine Jason were also trained to do “the rounds” and are helping 
to maintain the many library displays. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Top Circulating Titles By Collection 
From 1/1/2018 – 1/31/2018

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Comparison of Physical Collection Circulation 

January 2017 to January 2018 
 
 
Collection Categories  Jan 2017 

Circs 
Jan 2018 
Circs 

Change  % Change

Adult Audiobooks  1324 1175 ‐149 ‐11% 

Adult Bookmobile Collection  378 359 ‐19 ‐5% 

Adult Fiction  4883 5170 287 6% 

Adult Non‐Fiction  5665 5724 59 1% 

Foreign Language Adult  231 194 ‐37 ‐16% 

Foreign Language Juvenile 952 818 ‐134 ‐14% 

Foreign Language Young Adult  17 10 ‐7 ‐41% 

Graphic Novels  2849 2562 ‐287 ‐10% 

Interlibrary Loan  379 250 ‐129 ‐34% 

Juvenile Audiobooks  567 414 ‐153 ‐27% 

Juvenile Bookmobile Collection  2611 2293 ‐318 ‐12% 

Juvenile Fiction  6398 5074 ‐1324  ‐21% 

Juvenile Non‐Fiction  6310 4770 ‐1540  ‐24% 

Large Print  752 729 ‐23 ‐3% 

Local Author Collection  0 3 3

Magazines  701 986 285 41% 

Movies  16455 13448 ‐3007  ‐18% 

Movies ‐ Juvenile  8430 5757 ‐2673  ‐32% 

Music CDs  3339 2358 ‐981 ‐29% 

On‐The‐Fly  11 8 ‐3 ‐27% 

Picture Books  11563 10436 ‐1127  ‐10% 

Reference  3 10 7 233% 

STEAMboxes  0 28 28

Studio 300 Collection  3640 2995 ‐645 ‐18% 

Technology & Equipment  1138 1022 ‐116 ‐10% 

Technology & Equipment ‐ Juvenile  255 139 ‐116 ‐45% 

Toys  91 100 9 10% 

Videogames  3030 2375 ‐655 ‐22% 

Young Adult Audiobooks  168 118 ‐50 ‐30% 

Young Adult Bookmobile Collection  15 22 7 47% 

Young Adult Fiction  1405 1306 ‐99 ‐7% 

Young Adult Non‐Fiction  366 323 ‐43 ‐12% 

TOTAL  83926 70976 ‐12950  ‐15% 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 For January 2018, digital circulation was 12% of the library’s total circulation. 

 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

July September November January March May

Monthly Circulation

2015‐2016 2016‐2017 2017‐2018

11184

9007

9786

7656

9319

6774 7006
7540

10513
10199

7963
8556 8587

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Jan‐17 Feb‐17 Mar‐17 Apr‐17 May‐17 Jun‐17 Jul‐17 Aug‐17 Sep‐17 Oct‐17 Nov‐17 Dec‐17 Jan‐18

Digital Circulation



 

 

 
 

Hoopla Statistics 
     
 
     

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

Aug‐
16

Sep‐
16

Oct‐
16

Nov‐
16

Dec‐
16

Jan‐
17

Feb‐
17

Mar‐
17

Apr‐
17

May‐
17

Jun‐
17

Jul‐
17

Aug‐
17

Sep‐
17

Oct‐
17

Nov‐
17

Dec‐
17

Jan‐
18

Book Flix 219 313 511 442 119 311 215 194 129 446 97 57 246 437 105 4 28 122

Tumble Books 339 2011 1885 3371 5136 3717 2458 2056 1197 1670 195 85 865 3,9481,9041,4842,0491672

World Book eBooks 33 43 150 49 120 313 752 75 40 164 5 2 53 61 1,611 23 8 83

Gale Virtual Ref Library 20 32 16 51 17 22 58 417 42 51 12 8 69 67 90 68 11 51

Hoopla 273 280 399 430 472 645 558 720 644 758 784 847 905 807 894 1,039 912 1080

Freegal Music 1223 680 820 777 890 1647 1327 1589 1230 1735 1047 1037 1033 901 1010 924 996 673

Zinio eMagazines 164 119 212 218 122 151 117 234 77 232 147 354 136 172 115 238 155 152

OnePlay Video games 0 0 0 0 35 18 14 0 57 2 61 2 3 0 0 3 12 0

OneClick Digital eAudio 91 94 80 87 46 66 82 76 72 114 65 129 110 102 90 108 77 81

Biblioboard 0 0 0 0 0 24 26 9 8 6 2 17 12 2 8 8 17 13

Cloud Library 461 463 468 611 888 1010 921 934 872 841 890 961 883 994 1093 1061 1200 1166

eRead Illinois 190 153 189 177 213 216 155 197 186 211 213 245 195 199 218 196 195 207

OverDrive 3,0733,0592951 2869 3068 3375 3076 3360 3142 3212 3256 32623,0302,8233,0612,8072,8963,287

Digital Collection Circulation



 

 

 Audiobooks were the most borrowed format, accounting for 37% of all circs. 

 There were 1,080 total circs in January 2018 borrowed by 247 patrons.  The average number of 
circs was 4.40 circs per patron, with 44 individuals using all 10 circs. 

 Adult Fiction was the most borrowed category, accounting for 46% of all circs. 
 

Top 20 Hoopla Titles 
 

 
 

Freegal Statistics 
 

 503 songs were streamed by 15 patrons 

 170 songs were downloaded by 21 patrons 
 
 

Top 10 Music Genres 
Genre  Number of 

Downloads 
Genre Number of 

Streams 

Rock  121  Classical 45

Pop  107  Pop 23

Country  45  Rock 18

Blues  44  Jazz 13

Jazz  40  Rap 11

Dance  35  Spoken Word 11

World Music  28  Blues 5

Hip Hop  27  Dance 5

R&B  17  New Age 4

Classical  12  Country 3
 

Title Author Year Genre Circs
Hamilton (Original Broadway Cast RecordinVarious Artists 2015 Soundtrack 9
Pitch Perfect 3 (Original Motion Picture SouVarious Artists 2017 Soundtrack 6
The Greatest Showman (Original Motion PicVarious Artists 2017 Soundtrack 4
The Getaway Jeff Kinney 2017 Comics & Graphic N4
Gamer Gerard Butler 2010 Action & Adventure 3
5 Days To A Clutter-Free House Sandra Felton 2017 Self Help 3
Expectations -  Relinquishing Preconceptions 2011 Educational, Health 3
Before And After Meryl Streep 1996 Crime, Drama, Psyc3
Batman (2016-) Vol. 4: The War Of Jokes ATom King 2017 Superhero, Teen 3
The City of Brass S. A. Chakraborty2017 Sci-Fi & Fantasy 3
Hamilton Lin-Manuel Mirand2017 Documentary 3
reputation Taylor Swift 2017 Pop 3
Mere Christianity C. S. Lewis 2005 Religious 3
Death Of A Bachelor Panic! At The Dis2015 Alternative 3
Men's Relational Toolbox Gary Smalley 2014 Christian Life, Men's2
The Perfect Match Kristan Higgins 2014 Romance 2
The Magnolia Story Chip Gaines 2016 Biography 2
The Jungle Book Various Artists 2016 Soundtrack 2
Riders of the Dawn Louis L'Amour 2006 Westerns 2
Maigret in Montmarte 1992 Crime, Mystery 2



 

 

NextReads Newsletters 
 New Subscribers: 56 
 Unsubscribed: 18 
 Total Emails Sent: 1,241 
 77.63% were viewed on a desktop 
 22.37% were viewed on a mobile device 
 42.14% emails were opened 
 292 items were clicked open 
 January 2018 issue of New Movies had the highest number of clicks (31 clicks) 
 January 14 issue of New York Times Fiction Bestsellers had the highest unique opens (31 emails opened) 
 New York Times Fiction Bestsellers has the highest subscribers (78) 

 
Physical Items Added and Withdrawn 

Physical Items  Jan 2018 
Added 

Jan 2018 
Withdrawn 

Adult Audiobooks  125 7 

Adult Bookmobile Collection 85 0 

Adult Fiction  571 26 

Adult Non‐Fiction  420 3113 

Foreign Language Adult  5 0 

Foreign Language Juvenile  58 2 

Foreign Language Young Adult 3 1 

Graphic Novels  108 24 

Juvenile Audiobooks  36 3 

Juvenile Bookmobile Collection 152 12 

Juvenile Fiction  153 21 

Juvenile Non‐Fiction  166 6 

Large Print  44 3 

Local Author Collection  2 0 

Magazines  345 1851 

Movies  224 17 

Movies ‐ Juvenile  53 19 

Music CDs  57 0 

Picture Books  225 20 

Reference  4 1 

Studio 300 Collection  2 41 

Technology & Equipment  9 79 

Technology & Equipment ‐ Juvenile 2 0 

Toys  0 9 

Videogames  17 5 

Young Adult Audiobooks  4 1 

Young Adult Bookmobile Collection 2 0 

Young Adult Fiction  42 8 

Young Adult Non‐Fiction  9 0 

TOTAL  2923  5269 



 

 

Interlibrary Loan 

 Unclaimed items jumped from 24 in December to 37 in January 

 ILL Statistics: 
o 360 items requested by patrons 

 333 submitted in OCLC 
 12 items were too new to request 
 7 were available in Pinnacle 
 8 were out of country only 

o 307 Items received 
 164 Illinois libraries 
 113 out of state libraries 

o 419 Items requested by other libraries (lending was turned off for two weeks) 
 231 Illinois libraries 
 188 out of state libraries 
 0 out of country library 

o 298 Items sent to other libraries 
 164 Illinois libraries 
 113 out of state libraries 
 21 XYZ libraries 

 
 
Displays & Promotion 
 Lobby Tree: New Year New You (Brian) 37 checkouts 
 Lobby Tree: Winterfest (Sarah) 27 checkouts 
 Lobby Tree: Abe Lincoln (Illinois) 0 checkouts (3 days only) 
 Lobby Display: Gone But Not Forgotten 16 checkouts 
 Lobby Display: Learn a New Hobby 65 checkouts 
 Lobby Display: Holocaust Remembrance 26 checkouts (one 

week)  
 Popular Picks 443 checkouts  
 CSD Holiday Wall: Winter 38 checkouts  
 CSD Holiday Wall: EBKD 33 checkouts 
 CSD Holiday Wall: Staff Picks (DOA) 88 checkouts  
 CSD Holiday Wall: Cookies 12 checkouts 
 CSD Holiday Wall: Unusual Animals 5 checkouts 
 CSD Holiday Wall: Artic Animals 35 checkouts 
 CSD Holiday Wall: E Graphics 43 checkouts 
 CSD Holiday Wall: Moon 14 checkouts 
 CSD Holiday Wall: Football 10 checkouts 
 CSD Yellow Wall: Winter Fun 39 checkouts 
 DVD display: Bond 6 checkouts 
 DVD display: Stories behind the stories 25 checkouts 
 DVD display: Getaways 33 checkouts 
 DVD display: Superbowl 9 checkouts 
 3rd floor fiction: Around the world in 80 days 15 checkouts 



 

 

 3rd floor fiction: Historical Fiction 45 checkouts 
 3rd floor nonfiction: Learn Something New 6 checkouts 
 3rd floor nonfiction: Scandals 39 checkouts 
 3rd floor nonfiction: Hygge 2 checkouts (only up 3 days) 
 3rd floor self-check: Healthy Cooking 31 checkouts 
 3rd floor self-check: Football 0 checkouts (only up 3 days) 
 Programming Cart: Staff Picks 27 checkouts 
 Web Carousel: Staff Picks 

                  
                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Communications (Melissa Bradley) 
 
Communications General Updates 
 

 Melissa and Steven met with cross-departmental teams to discuss how to 
best utilize book carousels and the new form builder plugin for the website 
redesign. 
 

 Steven hosted a Beanstack Kickoff meeting to discuss our implementation 
plan for Summer Adventure. He also completed preliminary forms for 
Beanstack to help them design our program. 
 

 Melissa met with Chicago Billboards to discuss new marketing opportunities. 
 

 Melissa and Sabrina met with Warehouse Direct to discuss new promotional 
products and wearables.  
 

 Melissa, Juanita and the Staff Committee hosted a Staff Chili Cook-Off. 
 

 Sabrina redesigned the Preschool Round-Up collateral.  



 

 

              
             2017                                                                     2018 
 

Media Coverage 
 The Herald-News and Bugle mentioned us in their Great Read coverage. 

 
 We received a very nice Yelp review: 

 
 
Social Media Paid Ads 

 The Mango Languages 31 Days of Language paid ad ended. The ad ran 
December 29–January 15. We spent $18 on the ad, which reached 1,582, and 
91 people engaged with it. 



 

 

Strategic Planning 
 Steven officially joined Goal Team 5. 

 
 We continue to send out program evaluation surveys to people who attended our 

events and programs. Our grand total is 2,195 completed surveys. 
o The most frequent way people hear about our programs is via the website 

(44.5%) and The Fountain newsletter (35.3%) 

 
Social Media Metrics  

o Facebook Metrics 
 20 new people liked our page  
 341 people viewed our page (ave 574 views/mo in 2016) 
 39,835 people saw our content (ave 59,577 people/mo in 2016) 

 18,015 people saw our content because a friend shared, 
liked or engaged with it  

 2,395 people engaged with our content (clicked, liked, commented 
or shared) (ave 2,693 users/mo in 2016) 

 
o Twitter Metrics 

 2 new followers 
 232 page views (ave 155 views/mo in 2016) 
 9,330 tweet impressions (ave 10,879 impressions/mo in 2016)  

 
o Instagram Metrics 

 15 new followers  
 356 post likes (ave 478 likes/mo in 2017) 

 
Email Marketing Metrics  

 Number of emails sent: 8 
 66 new subscribers 
 Average open rate: 43.16% (industry average is 19.85%)  
 Average click rate: 18.39%  

 
Finance (Jennie Nguyen) 
 
Accounting/Reports:  Completed regular monthly financial reports, analysis, and 
reconciliations.  
 
PMA Network Meeting – Met with our PMA representatives and Paul to discuss the 
potential opportunity to invest with our local banks.  Our representative will research and 
inform us of our best options. 
Capital Asset Inventory Schedule: Lauterbach & Amen, LLP has complete our Capital 
Asset inventory schedule and I will meet with them in February to review the new 
schedule to ensure it comply with the policy requirements. 



 

 

 
Fixed Asset Import – Allyse has been working closely with our Blackbaud consultant to 
finalize the database file to be imported directly into our Financial Edge Software.  This 
project has been completed. 
 
Industrial Appraisal Report – Allyse has been with our representative to update our 
appraisal information with the company for our appraisal report. 
 
Insurance Audit – Working with Allyse to compile the documentations for our annual 
insurance audit. 
 
Financial Edge System – I have been working closely with Blackbaud on the system 
upgrade to the new Financial Edge NXT accounting for 2018.   
 
Circulation Refund Issue – Meet with Jenny, Nancy and Paul to discuss and to come 
up with a solution to the effects of patron refunds on their cash box fund.  A new check 
refund procedure will be put in place along with a new refund form which the patron will 
be required to complete. 
 
Lauterbach & Amen Seminar – Allyse and I had attended a training in January which 
focus on taxability issues and things to know before releasing your W-2's and 1099's for 
the year. 
 
Employee Package Tally – There was a total of 13 staff personal package notification 
for December. 
 
Change Request Tally – There was a total of 29 change request for January 2018 

 
Location Number of 

Requests 
Amount 
Total 

ATSD – 2nd Floor 16 $744.80 
ATSD – 3rd Floor 1 $20.00 
Circulation 7 $170.20 
Children Services 3 $62.00 
Studio 300 2 $40.00 

 
 
Human Resources (Lea Pottle) 
 
Staffing and Recruiting 
Open Positions: 

 Adult and Teen Services Computer Aide 
 Building Security Monitor (2) 
 Collection Development Aide 
 Finance Specialist 

New Hires and Promotions: 
 Julie Walker, Circulation Services Aide (1/29/18) 



 

 

 Jay Purrazzo was promoted from Adult and Teen Services Computer Aide to 
Adult and Teen Services Specialist (1/29/18) 

 Andre Burton was promoted from Building Security Monitor to Adult and Teen 
Services Specialist (2/26/18) 

 
Departures: 

 Rahul Koshy, Building Security Monitor (2/4/18) 
 

Training and Development 
-Noelia: 

 DuPage SHRM meeting 
 Represented GT5 during a question and Answer Session regarding performance 

evaluations 
 Provided coverage for Children’s Services during their monthly meeting 

-Lea: 
 Paylocity Compliance Webinar 
 Met with representatives from ADP 
 Management Association: Roundtable discussion 
 Began studying for part 2, GBA2, of the Certified Employment Benefits Specialist 

(CEBS) certification. Exam will be taken in March. 
 Volunteered with Joliet Area Community Hospice, United Way sponsored, on 

Martin Luther King Day. 
 Created training videos for the new Performance Evaluation System 
 Met with Goal Team 5 to host two question and answer sessions regarding 

evaluations and the use of Niche Academy for staff training. 
 Participated in Goal Team Owners meeting. 

 
Policy Development 
Worked with the Executive Director to revise/edit the following policies which will be 
brought to the Board of Trustees at the February meeting: American with Disabilities Act 
Policy Statement, Dual Positions Policy. 
 
Anti-Harassment and Anti-Discrimination Training 
Held three training sessions in which 4 staff members, 3 supervisors, and 2 trustees 
were present. 
 
Practicum Student and STEP Student Orientations 
Reviewed policies and expectations with students completing their practicums at 
Fountaindale. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Strategic Goals- Goal Team 5 
 
Objective 5.2: Implement an improved staff performance evaluation process. 
In January, a new evaluation process was started. The process addresses many of the 
concerns raised by managers and staff as well as incorporated/retained beneficial 
facets of the system. 
Staff were given the opportunity to view two videos explaining the changes and 
processes, and attend two question and answers sessions hosted by members of goal 
team 5. Staff have been encouraged to speak with supervisors, managers, and the 
Human Resources Manager if they have questions. 
The initial reactions have been positive to the changes made. 
 
Objective 5.4: Implement a technology training program. 
Goal team 5 members have met to discuss using Niche Academy as a platform for this 
training. A survey of technology skills has been distributed to department managers to 
get input on the skills needed by their staff. 
Niche Academy will allow us to upload existing content as well as create specific 
content to meet our training needs. 
 
 
Information Technology (John Matysek) 
 
• During the month of January 110 new help desk tickets were created by FPLD 
staff, and 103 new or existing tickets were solved by IT staff. 
 
• Along with Melissa Bradley and Steven Ford, met with multiple staff members to 
discuss how best to integrate book carousels in the new website design. 
 
• Met with Paul Mills, Nancy Castellanos, Tasos Priovolos, and Debra Dudek to 
discuss ways to better utilize the space currently configured as the 2nd floor computer 
lab. 
 
• Met with Paul Mills, Nancy Castellanos, Christina Theobold, Debra Dudek, and 
Jenny Cuevas, to discuss how to implement circulation of cellular hotspot devices to 
patrons. 
 
• Along with Randall Hildebrandt, Jose Robles, and Nathan Peddicord, acquired 
and assembled a new mini PC configuration for testing as a potential replacement for 
existing patron PC’s. 
 
• Along with multiple staff, met to discuss the kickoff of implementation of the new 
reading program software by vendor Beanstack. 
 
• Along with Randall Hildebrandt, Jose Robles, and Nathan Peddicord, began 
configuring 3 all in one computers for use in the forthcoming Studio 300 Makerspace. 
 
• Worked with vendor Comcast to troubleshoot and correct an issue with their fiber 
Internet connection to the library. 



January 2018 District Statistics
Population 

Total 67683
Total Circulation Statistics 79,563 Reading Clubs Adult Teen Children Outreach Total Website Visits Total Facebook Likes
Building/Driveup 65,269 Reading Clubs Offered 0 0 1 0 1 23,895 3,571
Bookmobile 5,707 Reading Clubs Members 0 0 188 0 188 Proctoring Total Twitter Followers
Digital 8,587 18 722

Faxes Sent Total Instagram Followers
Collections Totals Population Served Building Outreach Total 665 537

Interlibrary Loan Requests New Items Available 4,267 Total Visits 30,964 1,488 32,452 Scans Sent Total eNews Subscribers
Items Received for our Patrons 307 Collections Total 372,309 New Cardholders 249 0 249 3,343 2,918
Items Sent to other Libraries 298 Items per Capita 5.50 Active Cardholders 27,192 198 27,390 Pages Printed COHS Students Enrolled
Circulation Holds Processing Materials Handling Return Totals Total Served 59,842 % Served 40.47% 21,424 13
Share Illinois requests filled 22 Lobby 20,857 Computer and Internet Sessions Monthly Wireless 

SessionsItems loaned to Pinnacle libraries 5,518 Drive Through 9,181 Studio 300 Children's Vortex Lab/Commons 3rd Floor Lab
Items borrowed from Pinnacle libraries 3,862 Staff 38,754 554 1,065 284 4,071 29 18,905

Public Use of Meeting Rooms 
S300 Audio 

Booths Studio 300 GCRs
S300 Video 

Suites

Meeting Room A, B, 
3rd Floor Lab & 

Board Room  Study Rooms Free Standing Book Drop Return Totals
Number of events/uses 193 42 37 47 685 Building Front Building Rear Church Ashbury's
Attendance 273 109 106 508 396 4,608 4,799 1,184 450

Programs
Programs and Tours for Adults Programs and Tours for Teens Mobile App Downloads

Adult/Teen Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total Adult/Teen Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total IOS:  2,982
Numbered offered 46 3 32 81 36 0 0 36 Android: 652
Attendance 628 17 132 777 612 0 0 612

Programs
Programs and Tours for Children Passive Progams for Teens Total Offered*

Children's Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total Adult/Teen Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total 344
Numbered offered 54 163 1 218 15 0 0 15 Total Attendance*
Attendance 1,225 5,677 13 6915 247 0 0 247 9,475

Passive Programs for  Children
Cross-Department Programs/Tours and Streaming Media Video 

Stats for All Ages  
Children's Staff Outreach Staff Studio 300 Staff Total Building Offsite Virtual* Total

Numbered offered 60 0 0 60 7 2 2 11
Attendance 436 0 0 436 66 1,035 1,177 2,278
Reference/Library Info Studio 300 Circulation 2nd Flr. Media Vortex 3rd Floor Outreach Children's Svcs. Total
Reference Total 542 32 939 132 904 1,137 1,018 4,704
Library Information 53 1,148 969 159 786 62 2,064 5,241
One on One Assistance (Scheduled) 38 0 5 0 25 0 2 70

Comparison to Previous Year This Year Last Year % change
Comparison to 
Previous Year This Year Last Year % change

* Virtual not included in programming totals

Circulation 79,563 95,136 -19.57% Reference Questions 4,704 5,773 -22.73%
Visitors 32,452 36,483 -12.42% Computer Usage 6,003 7,209 -20.09%
Card Holders 27,192 31,305 -15.13% Wireless Sessions 18,905 15,519 17.91%

Program Attendance* 9,475 9,413 0.65%


	02-15-2018 Agenda
	02-15-2018 Agenda Background Revised
	01-18-2018 Minutes
	Dual Positions DRAFT
	Americans with Disabilities Act DRAFT
	Board Liaison Descriptions
	Trustee Service Request for ALA 2018 Spindel
	February 2018 Board Report
	2017-2018 Board and Hand Tally Statistics - January 2018
	Treasurers Report as of January 31 2018.pdf
	Treasurers Report as of January 31 2018 1
	Treasurers Report as of January 31 2018 2
	Treasurers Report as of January 31 2018 3


